
 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Erin Anton at 
(909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the workshop packet are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting 
material is also be available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, February 24, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 

 
 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1 

Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

  
 

I. Call to Order 
II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   
III. Staff Report 
IV. Presentations 

A. Presentation of Findings and Recommendations from a Water and Sewer System Energy 
Efficiency Audit of District Facilities [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023 - Page 9 of 145] 

B. Presentation on the Issuance of $30,810,000 Refunding Revenue Bonds for the 
Refinancing of the 2004A Certificates of Participation [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-
024 - Page 27 of 145] 

C. Presentation on the Digester Cover and Piping Replacement Project at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-025 - Page 41 of 145] 

D. Presentation on the Implementation of the 2014 Water Bond - Proposition 1 [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-026 - Page 42 of 145] 

V. Capital Improvement Projects 
A. Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir R-12.4 

- Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-027 - Page 77 of 145] 
B. Status Report on the 2015 Water Pipeline Replacement Program [Workshop 

Memorandum No. 15-028 - Page 79 of 145] 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 1 of 145



Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

VI. Administrative Items 
A. Ratification of Beaumont Basin Watermaster Monitoring and Reporting Expenses 

[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029 - Page 93 of 145] 
B. Discussion Regarding the Proposed “Ad Hoc” State of the Regional Water Supply 

Workshop Proposed by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 15-030 - Page 127 of 145] 

VII. Director Comments 
VIII. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: IBEW Local Union 1436-YVWD Employees Association 

B. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: YVWD Supervisory Employees 

C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: YVWD Management Employees (Exempt)  

IX. Adjournment  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 2 of 145



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 3 of 145



 
 

State’s Population Growth Expected to Outstrip 
Water Conservation in Coming Years 

BY MATT WEISER AND PHILLIP REESE - MWEISER@SACBEE.COM 

02/14/2015 10:00 AM & 02/15/2015 8:30 PM 

 

California water agencies are on track to satisfy a state mandate to reduce water consumption 20 
percent by 2020. But according to their own projections, that savings won’t be enough to keep up 
with population growth just a decade later. 

A 2009 state law requires urban water agencies to reduce per-capita water consumption 20 
percent by 2020, compared with use at the start of the century. Most agencies are on track to 
reach that goal, and have made even more progress thanks to emergency cuts over the past year 
triggered by the ongoing drought. 

However, by 2030, the data show, these savings will be more than erased by anticipated 
population growth. According to projections by the water agencies themselves, their total water 
deliveries will increase 16 percent by 2030 compared to their estimates for 2015. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 4 of 145



California’s population, already larger than all other Western states combined, is expected to grow 
14 percent during that same period, reaching an estimated 44 million people by 2030, according 
to the state Department of Finance. 

If those projections hold, the result would be an additional 1 million acre-feet of water demand 
statewide – about equal to the capacity of Folsom Reservoir – by 2030. This would occur even 
as people use less water to meet the 20 percent reduction goal. 

“We are having a hard time managing the scarce water we have now,” said Newsha Ajami, 
director of urban water policy at Water in the West, a research group at Stanford University. “The 
problem is, every time the drought ends we snap out of it, and we don’t actually start planning for 
the next drought. We need to help people understand what this means for future generations.” 

In January 2014, Gov. Jerry Brown signed an emergency drought proclamation calling on all 
Californians to cut their water use 20 percent compared with 2013 in response to the worsening 
drought. This temporary measure is different from the 2020 goal, which is meant to be a 
permanent reduction in water use compared to what Californians were consuming in a base year, 
which for most water agencies is 1999.  

To comply with the 2020 mandate, urban water agencies are required every five years to submit 
water management plans to the state Department of Water Resources. Among other things, these 
plans estimate each agency’s future water demand out to 2035. The demand estimates are based 
on projected population growth, as well as anticipated development patterns and water 
consumption levels unique to each agency’s local service area.  

The Sacramento Bee reviewed plans submitted by more than 370 agencies in 2011 and compiled 
a database on the water demand projections. The results show that, collectively, urban water 
agencies expect demand to grow 16 percent by 2030 and continue growing beyond that. This 
would eclipse the 2020 goal by nearly 1 million acre-feet, potentially adding significant new water 
demand in the next drought. 

“Clearly, we’re going to have to do more,” said Tracy Quinn, a policy analyst at the Natural 
Resources Defense Council who specializes in California water policy. “The key to this is our 
water sources don’t increase as population grows. If population is to grow, we need to figure out 
a way to do it with that same amount of water.” 

Hot climates, big growth 

The water agency projections come with uncertainty, largely because they were prepared as the 
recession dramatically reduced growth in the state. The population growth water agencies 
anticipated in the 2011 reports may have been too great, along with the resulting projections of 
increased water demand. The next round of reporting, due in 2016, may produce different results. 

On the other hand, slow growth may be one reason water agencies are making good progress 
toward meeting the 2020 conservation target. Almost all of them easily met the interim target of a 
10 percent reduction by 2015. A return to faster growth could reduce that progress. 

“There are a lot of people who think the economy has a big impact on water use,” said Peter 
Brostrom, chief of DWR’s water use efficiency branch. “If there’s a real big upturn in the economy 
that could potentially increase water use.” 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 5 of 145



Water districts forecast the total number of 
water customers in the state to increase 
about 20 percent from 2015 to 2030, 
according to the surveys. Many of the largest 
increases are expected in the state’s hottest 
climates, areas where water demand is 
generally greater. 

Large Southern California water districts in 
Coachella, Highland, Rialto, Indio, Palmdale 
and inland San Diego all predict water 
demand increases of greater than 50 
percent between 2015 and 2030. 

Several Central Valley water districts also 
predict significant growth. The cities of 
Tulare, Madera and Merced, along with the 
Sacramento County Water Agency and the 
El Dorado Irrigation District, each anticipate 
water consumption to grow by at least 40 
percent between 2015 and 2030. 

Among large, local districts, Folsom predicts 
a 30 percent increase; Roseville predicts a 
23 percent rise; and city of Sacramento 
officials predict a 10 percent increase. 

Statewide, water disttaffricts anticipate 
commercial water use to increase 18 
percent; single-family residential water use 
to rise 16 percent; and multifamily residential 
water use to rise 21 percent. 

Under current law, urban water agencies 
face no required conservation targets 
beyond 2020, but a Water Action Plan 
released last year by Gov. Jerry Brown vows 
to develop new conservation targets for the 
years beyond. 

“We fully anticipate there will be further targets after 2020,” Brostrom said. “The goal is to hold 
the total volume of urban water use to be the equivalent of roughly what it was in 2000.” 

State plans stronger role 

The state also plans to give water agencies more direction in how to prepare their demand 
projections. In many cases, agencies hire a consultant to prepare the projections and rarely check 
for accuracy, Quinn said. She has audited a number of the water management plans and found 
many inconsistencies in how water demand projections fit with expected growth. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 6 of 145

http://resources.ca.gov/docs/california_water_action_plan/Final_California_Water_Action_Plan.pdf


Some water agency leaders contacted by The Bee acknowledged they don’t know very much 
about their own demand projections. 

John Tillotson, director of public works at the Olivehurst Public Utility District in Yuba County, said 
a consultant was hired to prepare the district’s urban water management plan. He couldn’t recall 
what the demand projections were when asked about it recently. 

“I don’t have any information as far as the growth that we predicted,” Tillotson said. “If it ever 
happens – and that’s a big ‘if’ – it would take quite a long time.” 

Tillotson’s district predicted one of the highest growth rates in the state: a 172 percent increase 
in water demand from 2015 to 2030. This was based on the planned construction of 8,000 new 
homes at Plumas Lake, a massive subdivision north of Sacramento that will be entirely served by 
groundwater wells managed by the district. Construction came to a standstill during the recession 
and only recently started back up. 

“It’s anybody’s guess as to when those homes will be here, if ever,” Tillotson said. “It might be 10 
years, it might be 20, it might be never. We have capacity in that area right now, and we have a 
planning document that will support the growth.” 

Gregory Weber, executive director of the California Urban Water Conservation Council, said water 
agencies throughout the state understand they will have to work harder on conservation. If 
anything, the current drought has made that clearer. 

Conservation is often the first option water agencies choose to accommodate growth, rather than 
seeking out new water supplies. Conservation and other options – such as recycling stormwater 
and wastewater – are almost always cheaper than buying water, building dams or drilling wells. 

“There’s general recognition on the part of members throughout the state that, if you’ve got 
restrictions on supply, the only way you can pay for growth is by investments in efficiency, 
conservation or water recycling,” said Weber, whose group represents hundreds of urban water 
suppliers. “I’ve never heard anybody say, ‘We’ll hit 20 percent by 2020, and then we’re done.’ ” 

The Pacific Institute and Natural Resources Defense Council recently completed a report, called 
“Untapped Potential,” that reveals lots of opportunity left in California to conserve water. 

Simply switching commercial and residential customers to the latest high-efficiency appliances 
and plumbing fixtures could save 5 million acre-feet per year, according to the report. That’s 
enough to serve more than 10 million households. Stopping leaks, adding more water recycling 
and stormwater capture, and reducing water use for landscaping could boost total savings to 13 
million acre-feet. 

“We do have enough water available to meet the demands of a growing population,” Quinn said. 
“We just have to be more innovative in the ways that we’re using the water that we have.” 

Call The Bee’s Matt Weiser at (916) 321-1264. Follow him on Twitter @matt_weiser. 

Read more here:  

http://www.sacbee.com/news/local/environment/article10311635.html#storylink=cpy  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 7 of 145

http://pacinst.org/publication/ca-water-supply-solutions/
https://twitter.com/matt_weiser
http://www.sacbee.com/news/local/environment/article10311635.html%23storylink=cpy


 

Presentations 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 8 of 145



 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 15-023

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Presentation of Findings and Recommendations from a Water and 
Sewer System Energy Efficiency Audit of District Facilities 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District recently completed an energy audit at the wastewater treatment 
plant, water filtration facility, and administrative offices with the Energy Network.  The Energy 
Network is a third-party engineering consultant firm, authorized by the California Public Utilities 
Commission, to assist residents, businesses, and the public sector to achieve energy savings.  At 
no cost to the District, Lincus and the Energy Network performed an audit of District facilities with 
input and participation by District staff members.  The audit resulted in the identification of 
potentially beneficial savings to the District.   
 
At the board workshop, the District staff and our project partners will discuss the following 
elements of the proposed energy saving initiative: 
 Turnkey Project Delivery - A full range of energy efficiency services have been specifically 

tailored for the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 Comparative Energy Analysis - The comparative energy analysis report has prioritized sites 

for the implementation of energy retrofit projects.   
 Project Manager and Energy Consulting Team - Representatives from Lincus and the 

Energy Network will manage and oversee all required project tasks.  Experienced engineering 
staff will be assigned to work with District staff and provide technical assistance during the 
project.   

 Financing Services - The recommended energy efficiency measures along with a detailed 
financial analysis of the energy savings and costs will assist the decision-making process. 

 Energy Efficiency Retrofit Design - Preparation of performance-based technical 
specifications and a scope of work for the selected projects will expedite construction 
procurement for energy retrofit construction services from a pool of quality electrical and 
mechanical contractors.  Local contractors are selected through a transparent and competitive 
bid process.  The project manager requests a cost proposal from the assigned contractor and 
facilitates a rigorous third-party review by technical experts for accuracy.  

 Construction by Quality Contractors/Construction Management Support - Facilitation of 
construction management with additional oversight and administrative support.  A quality 
engineer will assist the District staff and construction management staff.   

 Post-Construction Support - Receipt of project manual of installed systems, including 
access to a web-based energy information management system (EEMIS) to monitor, analyze 
and benchmark facility energy usage.  

 
During the workshop presentation, representatives from the Energy Network, Lincus and 
Southern California Edison will be available to provide an overview of the proposed project.  If the 
Board of Directors is interested in pursuing these energy saving projects, additional refinement of 
the project scope of services and contracts will be initiated by District staff with assistance from 
our project partners. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 9 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 2 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 10 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 3 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 11 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 4 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 12 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 5 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 13 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 6 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 14 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 7 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 15 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 8 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 16 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 9 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 17 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 10 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 18 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 11 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 19 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 12 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 20 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 13 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 21 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 14 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 22 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 15 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 23 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 16 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 24 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 17 of 18 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 25 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-023  Page 18 of 18 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 26 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-024

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Presentation on the Issuance of $30,810,000 Refunding Revenue 
Bonds for the Refinancing of the 2004A Certificates of Participation  

 
On May 24, 2004 the Yucaipa Valley Water District Financing Corporation (Financing 
Corporation) became incorporated under the laws of the State of California as a nonprofit public 
benefit corporation.  The purpose of the Corporation is to assist in the financing, refinancing, 
acquiring, constructing and rehabilitating of facilities, land and equipment, and in the sale or 
leasing of facilities, land and equipment (collectively, the “Facilities”) for the use, benefit and 
enjoyment of the public served by the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  
 
On June 29, 2004, the Financing Corporation issued $45,730,000 in bonds commonly referred to 
as the Water System Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2004A.  The funds were used 
primarily for the construction of the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility.   
 
On October 15, 2014, the Board 
of Directors authorized the 
General Manager to refinance 
the 2004A Certificates of 
Participation to gain the 
benefits of low interest rates for 
the remaining twenty year term 
of the debt obligation. 
 
On February 4, 2015, the 
District received notification of 
an A+ credit rating from 
Standard & Poor’s and an AA- 
credit rating from Fitch Ratings.  
Recognizing the importance of 
high credit ratings, the Board of 
Directors subsequently 
adopted a Debt Management 
Policy establishing the goal of 
obtaining AA ratings in the 
future to obtain low interest 
rates and provide a high grade 
investment opportunity for 
investors.  The key to obtaining 
a higher credit rating will be to 
maintain stable cash balances 
sufficient to provide the 
necessary coverage for debt 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 27 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 2 of 14 

 

obligations and emergency expenses.  By continuously improving and strengthening our core 
financial standing, the District will be able to obtain lower interest rates in the future and attract 
additional investments for our future infrastructure improvements. 
 
On February 12, 2015, the District’s 
Water System Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015A were available 
on the market.  At the conclusion of 
the bond offering, the District was 
able to obtain a true interest cost of 
3.104% which will result in an annual 
savings of about $600,000 for the 
twenty year duration of the debt.  A 
big part of the District’s success was 
based on our strong financial portfolio 
that is expected to continue to 
improve in the near future. 
 
The savings realized by this 
refinancing, will provide the additional 
financial reserves which should help 
achieve the AA credit rating resulting 
in lower interest costs.  Additionally, the savings will be applied directly to the rehabilitation of the 
water system infrastructure.  These funds will be used to replace old water pipelines, wells, 
boosters and reservoirs.  The reinvestment in our water infrastructure will provide a direct benefit 
to our customers and improve the overall reliability of the water system.  
 
The successful refinancing was a direct result of the hard work of District Controller Vicky Elisalda; 
the bond counsel staff from Stradling, Yocca, Carlson & Rauth; the financial advisors from 
Fieldman Rolapp & Associates; and the underwriters from Bank of America Merrill Lynch.  
Together this team of individuals performed exceptionally well in a short period of time to deliver 
savings that will enable our community to continuously improve our water system infrastructure. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 28 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 3 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 29 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 4 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 30 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 5 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 31 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 6 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 32 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 7 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 33 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 8 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 34 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 9 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 35 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 10 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 36 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 11 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 37 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 12 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 38 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 13 of 14 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 39 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024  Page 14 of 14 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 40 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-025

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Presentation on the Digester Cover and Piping Replacement Project 
at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water 
District operates and 
maintains four anaerobic 
digesters for sludge 
conditioning, each with a 
diameter of 45 feet and a 
side water depth of 22 feet, 
yielding a working capacity 
of approximately 262,000 
gallons per digester.  The 
digesters treat sludge drawn 
from both the primary 
clarifiers and from the 
dissolved air flotation 
thickeners.  Digested sludge 
flows by gravity and can be 
stored temporarily in a 
sludge holding tank before 
being conveyed to the belt 
presses for dewatering.   
 
The digesters were last cleaned in 2005, in 
preparation for the most recent treatment plant 
expansion.  Generally, anaerobic digester 
cleaning is required every 8-10 years in order to 
remove the accumulated build-up of sand, grit, 
and other debris.   
 
During the cleaning process, the District 
assessed the condition of the digesters and 
related equipment. After conducting routine 
maintenance to the digester facility, extensive 
corrosion was found.   
 
On November 6, 2013, the Board of Directors 
approved a contract with RMC to assist in the 
cleaning and replacement of covers and piping that has been impacted with corrosion.  The design 
drawings and bid documents are now complete.  The District staff will be providing an update and 
overview of the proposed project. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 41 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-026

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Presentation on the Implementation of the 2014 Water Bond - 
Proposition 1 

 
In November 2014, voters approved Proposition 1 which provides $7.5 billion to fund various 
water related projects.   

 
 
For the next budget year, Governor Brown is proposing an expenditure of $533 million from the 
bond funds.  Based on this proposal, the California Legislative Analyst Office released a report 
(attached) that reviews the Governor’s proposal and provides additional recommendations, 
focusing on making sure that the funds do not go to endless studies, that there is strict oversight 
over the fund disbursements, and that the process is transparent.  
 
The District staff is following the funding guidelines and opportunities to determine if our future 
recycled water projects fit the timing and goals of the Proposition 1 implementation plan.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 42 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 2 of 34 

 

 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 43 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 3 of 34 

 

 
 

Three things to watch for as lawmakers 
 implement California water bond 

FEBRUARY 09, 2015 BY JUSTIN EWERS 
 

 
 
Only a few months after voters overwhelmingly approved the $7.5 billion water bond 
known as Proposition 1, the California Economic Summit is urging state lawmakers to 
give water agencies more precise direction for allocating these funds—and to provide 
systematic oversight so voters can see how this money is being spent. 
Summit leaders offered these recommendations in testimony submitted today to the 
Assembly Committee on Water, Parks, and Wildlife, which last year earned plaudits for 
drafting clearly-defined “principles” for the bond—from prohibiting earmarks to increasing 
accountability—that many credit with contributing to the measure’s success. 
With California’s drought lingering, the Summit remains focused on ensuring bond funds 
allow regions to take “the right next steps” toward sustainability. Echoing a set of Summit 
drought-response proposals released last year, the testimony emphasizes the need not 
just for more investment to the state’s aging water infrastructure, but for smarter 
investment that encourages more comprehensive governance of the fragmented water 
system—and more comprehensive solutions to the state’s water challenges. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 44 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 4 of 34 

 

Three ideas for implementing Prop 1 
Today’s Summit testimony highlights three ways state leaders charged with implementing 
Prop 1 can accomplish these goals—all drawn from the Summit’s Roadmap to Shared 
Prosperity, a long-term plan for putting all of the state’s regions on a path to sustainable 
growth. 

1. Refine the state role. The Summit has encouraged state leaders to use the 
water bond to advance state goals for water resiliency—with state government 
providing financial incentives and gap financing for projects that meet the priorities 
outlined in the California Water Action Plan. The Summit notes an immediate 
opportunity in the bond’s $100 million allocation for enhancements to “an urban 
creek”—a funding stream that could support a range of urban restoration projects, 
including the Los Angeles River. The Summit has already begun working with the 
City of Los Angeles on how the new authority of Enhanced Infrastructure Financing 
Districts could leverage bond funds to support river restoration. 
2. Support integrated, multi-benefit projects across watersheds. Summit 
leaders have also urged the state to ensure Prop 1 advances the new paradigm 
where the state sets goals and regions compete to craft strategies that deliver the 
most benefit. This approach can be found in two different sections of the measure, 
which together add up to $2.3 billion: 
Watersheds: The $1.495 billion watershed chapter is made up entirely of 
“competitive grants for multi-benefit ecosystem and watershed protection and 
restoration projects in accordance with statewide priorities.” The legislation provides 
a detailed list of ways these dollars can be used, giving highest priority to “multi-
benefit” projects that could reduce fire danger, for example, while also increasing 
water supply, improving water quality, reducing flood impacts, and replenishing 
aquifers. The Summit notes that Prop 1 only allocates $38 million to the Sierra-
Cascade region—meaning 0.5 percent of the bond’s total funds will go directly to 
the upper mountain watersheds that provide two-thirds of the state’s runoff. Still, the 
Summit letters outlines a variety of ways mountain regions can compete for more 
funds, connect these projects with their beneficiaries in the more populous valleys 
below, and ensure beneficial uses of water throughout the watershed—all keys to 
water sustainability. 
Integrated water management: Prop 1 also allocates $810 million to “regional water 
management”—a decade-long effort to connect projects in upper and lower 
watersheds—with the measure directing funds first to projects “that cover a greater 
portion of the watershed.” The Summit letter calls out several opportunities for 
increasing these efforts—urging lawmakers to use bond funds to encourage local 
water agencies to accelerate development of their newly-required groundwater 
management plans, for example. The Summit also calls attention to its ongoing 
work with cities and local water agencies to identify ways to bring multiple local 
governments together to develop projects that capture and store stormwater. 
3. Maximize return on investment: Before Prop 1 passed, many stakeholders 
expressed concern over how the state will spend $2.7 billion allocated to storage 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 45 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 5 of 34 

 

projects—a looming choice between funding new dams or investing in alternative 
means of storage. While the bond’s storage funds won’t be allocated for years, the 
Summit letter notes that Prop 1 outlines a set of laudable goals for distributing these 
dollars—with the measure requiring the California Water Commission to create a 
competitive process “that ranks potential projects based on the expected return for 
public investment as measured by the magnitude of the public benefits provided.” 
The Summit letter notes several ideas for how the state can ensure these new funds 
help water agencies more effectively coordinate surface and groundwater storage, 
conveyance, and habitat restoration. 

Since the debate over Prop 1 began, the Summit has made the case that implementing 
the bond would be as important as the passage of the measure itself. The Summit letter 
makes the case that the bond’s language sets the bar high—and gives the Summit’s civic 
leaders an opportunity to work with lawmakers to ensure these funds help California begin 
the long journey to water sustainability. 
 
Source:  
http://www.caeconomy.org/reporting/entry/three-things-to-watch-for-as-lawmakers-implement-california-water-bond  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 46 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 6 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 47 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 7 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 48 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 8 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 49 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 9 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 50 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 10 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 51 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 11 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 52 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 12 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 53 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 13 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 54 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 14 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 55 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 15 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 56 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 16 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 57 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 17 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 58 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 18 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 59 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 19 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 60 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 20 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 61 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 21 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 62 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 22 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 63 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 23 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 64 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 24 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 65 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 25 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 66 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 26 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 67 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 27 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 68 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 28 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 69 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 29 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 70 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 30 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 71 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 31 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 72 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 32 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 73 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 33 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 74 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-026  Page 34 of 34 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 75 of 145



 

Capital Improvement Projects 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 76 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-027

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking 
Water Reservoir R-12.4 - Calimesa 

 
At the regular meeting on July 16, 2014, the Board authorized the solicitation of bids for the 
construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon R-12.4 Reservoir located on Singleton Road in Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 14-060].   
 

 
 
On November 19, 2014, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the reservoir 
facility to Gateway Pacific Contractors [Director Memorandum No. 14-091].   
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the progress of the reservoir 
construction project.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 77 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-027  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 78 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-028

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the 2015 Water Pipeline Replacement Program 

 
On February 16, 2015, the Los Angeles Times published a 
detailed article about the replacement costs associated with 
aging water pipelines in the service area of the Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power (attached).  Two of the most 
prominent illustrations in the article were the leaks by area 
from 2010 to 2014 (right) and the age of the water mainlines 
installed in the City of Los Angeles (below).  Both illustrations 
are included in the newspaper article at a larger scale. 

 
The infrastructure replacement issues facing the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
are the same issues facing water agencies throughout the country.  Water utilities need to actively 
focus on the replacement of water infrastructure to reduce liabilities, improve fire protection, and 
protect the high quality drinking water provided to their communities. 
 
Over the past several years, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has focused on the replacement of 
water pipelines by assigning a higher priority to the most leak prone pipelines.  This methodology 
is used to identify an area that is beginning to show signs of pipeline fatigue and failure.  Once an 
area has been identified, a water pipeline replacement project is defined to replace the water 
mainlines in the vicinity of the failing water pipeline.  This usually results in a project that replaces 
old water pipelines within a city block.  A couple of the pipeline replacement projects that were 
identified using this methodology are attached at the end of this workshop memorandum. 
 
The following map illustrates the recent leak history within the District’s service area and how most 
of the leaks are occurring on pipelines installed during the 1950’s to the 1970’s.  As described in 
the L.A. Times article, the older pipelines (throughout the country) are now at the end of their 
useful life. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 79 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 2 of 13 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 80 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 3 of 13 

The District staff is in the process of identifying the specific analytical statistical parameters that 
best represent the pipeline failures.  Once this calculation is perfected and the high priority leak 
prone pipelines have been replaced, the District staff intends on implementing a new forecasting 
methodology that will provide a predictive analysis for identifying pipeline replacements. 
 
While water utilities recognize the advantage of implementing an active replacement program like 
the one described above, the biggest issue is to secure sufficient funding to stay ahead of the 
aging infrastructure.  As described in Workshop Memorandum No. 15-024, the District staff is 
proposing that the Board of Directors assign the cost savings from the refinancing of the 2004A 
Certificates of Participation to offset the future costs associated with aging water infrastructure 
such as pipelines, wells and reservoirs.  This source of funding will allow the District to utilize a 
pay-as-you-go methodology for the replacement of aging infrastructure.  If this level of funding is 
insufficient to keep up with the aging infrastructure, the District staff may need to look at other 
funding methods to stay ahead of this infrastructure issue. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 81 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 4 of 13 

 
 

L.A.’s aging water pipes; a $1-billion dilemma 
 

By Ben Poston and Matt Stevens 
Feb. 16, 2015 

 

The water main break that flooded Nowita Place in 2013 wasn't the kind of spectacle that 
brought TV cameras. Water sprayed a foot in the air through a hole in the buckled asphalt, 
leaving residents in the Venice neighborhood without water service for hours. 

But the break fit an increasingly common pattern for L.A.'s aging waterworks: The pipe 
was more than 80 years old. It was rusted out. And it was buried in corrosive soil. 

About one-fifth of the city's water pipes were installed before 1931 and nearly all will reach 
the end of their useful lives in the next 15 years. They are responsible for close to half of 
all water main leaks, and replacing them is a looming, $1-billion problem for the city. 

"We must do something about our infrastructure and we must make the necessary 
investment," said H. David Nahai, former head of the Department of Water and Power. "If 
we don't act now, we'll simply pay more later." 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 82 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 5 of 13 

The DWP has a $1.3-billion plan to 
replace 435 miles of deteriorating 
pipe in the next 10 years, but 
difficult questions remain about 
how the agency will find the 
money, how much it will 
inconvenience commuters and 
whether the utility can ever catch 
up with its aging infrastructure. 

To reach its goal by 2025, the 
DWP would need to more than 
double the number of pipe miles it 
replaces annually and more than 
triple the average amount it 
spends on pipe replacement each 
year. Water officials said the 
department has already budgeted 
$78 million for water main 
replacement in the current fiscal 
year, a significant increase from its 
annual average. 

Future funding for the plan will 
depend on a combination of higher water rates, bond sales and other department 
revenue. Getting city leaders to approve higher water rates that the agency says it needs 
could require political maneuvering as the DWP deals with a standoff between city leaders 
and two nonprofit trusts over $40 million the agency gave to the organizations. The 
department is also rebounding from a billing scandal in late 2013. 

"Like the average rate-payer, I will have to be shown the case" for an increase, Mayor 
Eric Garcetti said, "but I'm interested in not burying my head on this problem." 

As officials weigh rate increases, pipes continue to deteriorate and leak, spewing millions 
of gallons of water onto city streets amid one of California's worst droughts on record. 
And costs to repair and maintain the aging system mount, totaling more than $250 million 
over the last eight fiscal years. 

More than a quarter-million pipes make up the DWP's 6,730-mile water main network. 
Since 2006, work crews have responded to about 13,000 leaks, about four a day across 
the city. 

Some areas experienced more leaks than others — Hollywood Hills West, Mid-City and 
Hollywood accounted for the largest number of leaks in the city since 2010, agency data 
show. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 83 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 6 of 13 

During the last eight fiscal years, the department spent an average of $44 million annually 
to replace about 21 miles of pipe per year. 

Still, water officials estimate that about 8 billion gallons of water are lost each year to 
leaky pipes, firefighting, evaporation, theft and other unaccounted losses, though they 
emphasize that the leak rate has been in decline over the last decade, and is about half 
the industry average. But the lost water could supply almost 50,000 households for a 
year. 

One small pipe in Woodland Hills leaked more than half a million gallons of water over 
the course of the year it took 
the DWP to find and fix it. A 
DWP spokeswoman said 
ambient noise made it difficult 
to find the leak with sound 
equipment. Workers drilled 
dozens of holes and dug out 
sections of the road to locate 
the leak, leaving uneven 
patches and a pothole filled 
with water, residents said. 

"This thing was wasting water 
and we're in this severe 
drought," said Rick Russell, 
who visits his mother in the 
neighborhood. "It's kind of like 
a slap in the face." 

Analyzing pipe infrastructure 
data, The Times found that 
pipe age, soil quality, water 
pressure and leak history are 
key factors that contribute to 
leaky water mains. DWP 
engineers weigh those factors 
when prioritizing pipes for 
replacement, assigning a letter 
grade to each water main 
based on its likelihood of failure 
and the potential 
consequences of a break. 
About 6% of the system earned 
grades of D and F, according to 
The Times' analysis. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 84 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 7 of 13 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 85 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 8 of 13 

The department's 10-year plan is aimed at replacing pipes that have poor grades. Officials 
believe that they can replace all the pipes now ranked D and F by 2025. 

More than 40% of the pipes graded D and F were installed in 1930 or earlier as Los 
Angeles' population boomed. The expansion of underground water mains in the city 
mirrored the growth in population above ground. Installation dropped off during the Great 
Depression and World War II, and surged during the baby boom, when the DWP installed 
more than 2,500 miles of water mains, department data show. Those postwar pipes will 
approach the end of their useful life span in about 30 years. 

Lucio Soibelman, a civil engineering professor at USC, reviewed the DWP's database of 
more than 260,000 water mains that The Times obtained through a California Public 
Records Act request. He found that older pipes in corrosive soils such as the sandy 
ground in Venice are the most likely to leak. 

"These are the pipes that have to 
be replaced first," Soibelman 
said. 

Those aren't the only factors, 
though. Water pressure and leak 
history are also important 
indicators of potential pipe 
failure, said Julie Spacht, the 
DWP's water executive 
managing engineer. Nearly 30% of the leaky pipes had more than one leak, the data 
show. Most of the at-risk water mains are being targeted for repair, The Times' review 
shows. 

Outdated engineering methods can also make a pipe more likely to fail. Cast iron mains 
installed before the 1930s often rusted from the inside out, causing leaks, officials said. 
DWP workers began lining new pipes in the mid-1930s with concrete. That change 
corresponds to a steep decline in leaks, The Times found. 

Cities such as Portland, Ore., San Francisco and Seattle are also seeing old pipes come 
of age, according to infrastructure experts who praised the DWP for addressing the issue. 

"This is not just an L.A. problem," said Colin Chung, an asset management consultant 
based in Irvine. "Because pipes are out of sight and out of mind, no one has really thought 
about how we're going to pay for this." 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 86 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 9 of 13 

One of the biggest 
recent pipe failures 
occurred last summer 
on Sunset Boulevard 
when two trunk lines 
— arterial pipes with 
diameters larger than 
20 inches — ruptured. 
One of the trunk lines 
was more than 90 
years old and graded 
C when it failed. The 
other was more than 
80 and graded D. 

The broken pipes sent about 20 million gallons of water rushing into Westwood, rendering 
cars inoperable, warping the hardwood floor in UCLA's Pauley Pavilion and causing what 
school administrators estimated would be millions of dollars in damage. 

Pipe repair costs totaled almost $900,000, DWP said. 

After the blowout, Garcetti asked the DWP to present a plan to address the city's 
infrastructure. Garcetti said the agency's goal of replacing D- and F-rated pipes by 2025 
is achievable using mostly bonds and cash from existing base rates. 

He didn't rule out water rate increases, but that requires public meetings and political 
capital from the DWP Board of Commissioners, City Council and mayor, all of whom must 
approve an increase. 

"We do need to pay for what we need to fix," Garcetti said. 

Although the DWP's $1.3-billion plan would fix many of the current problem pipes, water 
officials said it doesn't address pipes that will deteriorate in coming years. Even the 
department conceded it is unlikely that it will ever entirely catch up. 

Agency officials must also contend with quality-of-life realities for Los Angeles residents. 
Replacing several hundred miles of pipe could snarl traffic on roads that must be 
excavated. And the work will cause headaches for those who have to endure construction 
outside their homes. 

The department's plan could also be hampered by constant regulation changes, water 
price fluctuations and evolving drought conditions, which some infrastructure experts said 
can make executing a massive long-term initiative nearly impossible. 

But water officials said they need to act now. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 87 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 10 of 13 

"The goals we set are 'stretch'-type goals, but not unreasonable," Spacht said. "We're in 
a spot where we have an opportunity to take measures to keep us from being in a 
desperate situation in the future." 

Leslie Pope and her 
husband, Doug Fischer, 
who live on Nowita Place 
in Venice, said they 
would pay higher water 
rates if it meant improved 
pipes. Since 2010, crews 
have repaired four leaks 
on their street and three 
on the next block. 

The day the pipe split in 
front of her Craftsman 
bungalow, Pope and 
about 60 of her 
neighbors went without 
water most of the day, 
according to DWP 
records. Cones and a massive white truck blocked off the area as crews pumped out 
standing water. Workers ripped out and tossed aside chunks of asphalt, then dug a chest-
deep hole that measured 12 feet square, the records show. 

By the late afternoon, crews had removed and replaced seven feet of rusty pipe, records 
show. 

"I love Venice," Fischer said. "But it's old and falling apart, and these things need to be 
taken care of." 

Contact The Reporters 

Follow @bposton and @ByMattStevens on Twitter for updates on the city's infrastructure. 

Times staff writer Peter Jamison and researcher Kent Coloma contributed to this report. 

Credits: Interactive Map: Priya Krishnakumar. Interactive Chart and Digital Producer: 
Honest Charley Bodkin. 

Online Source: http://graphics.latimes.com/la-aging-water-infrastructure/  
 
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 88 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 11 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Pipeline Replacement Program 
Dewey Avenue, 1st Street and Gail Avenue Pipeline Project  

Completed in 2014 
 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 89 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 12 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Pipeline Replacement Program 
Cedar Avenue, Adams Street, Adams Court  

and Comberton Street Pipeline Project 
Scheduled for Construction in 2015 

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 90 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-028  Page 13 of 13 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Pipeline Replacement Program 
Washington Drive and 8th Street Pipeline Project  

Scheduled for Construction in 2015 
 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 91 of 145



 

 

Administrative Items

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 92 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-029

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Ratification of Beaumont Basin Watermaster Monitoring and 
Reporting Expenses 

 
In January 2001, the San Timoteo Watershed Management Authority was created as a joint 
powers agency between the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District, the City of Beaumont, South 
Mesa Water Company and the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  The parties recognized that they 
all had common interests in managing the water resources of the San Timoteo Watershed and 
the Beaumont groundwater basin.  
 
Once formed, the San Timoteo Watershed Management Authority began a multi-phased effort to 
develop and implement a comprehensive water management program based on the following 
regional goals: 

 To optimize and enhance the local water supplies; 
 To protect high quality water resources; and 
 To equitably distribute the benefits and costs of developing a regional management 

strategy. 
 
As a result of the desire to actively manage the local water resources, the parties executed a 
Stipulated Judgment that provided both the authority and responsibility for the administration of 
adjudicated water rights within the Beaumont Groundwater Basin.  The Honorable Judge Gary 
Tranbarger of the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Riverside, signed the 
Judgment entitled “San Timoteo Watershed Management Authority, vs. City of Banning, et al.,” 
Case No. RIC 389197, on February 4, 2004.  
 
Pursuant to the Judgment, the Court appointed a five-member Watermaster committee consisting 
of representatives from the City of Banning, the City of Beaumont, the Beaumont-Cherry Valley 
Water District, the Yucaipa Valley Water District, and South Mesa Water Company.  While the 
Judgment assigns the management of the Beaumont Basin to the Beaumont Basin Watermaster, 
the Court retains continuing jurisdiction should there be any need in the future to resolve difficult 
issues between the parties. 

______________ 
 
At the Beaumont Basin Watermaster meeting on February 4, 2015, the Watermaster Committee 
approved the following expenses: 

 The purchase of water level monitoring equipment for installation at twelve sites in the 
Beaumont Basin - $16,300.  (See page 3 of 34) 

 The installation of water level monitoring equipment in the Beaumont Basin and the 
collection/reporting of water level data - $18,490.  (See page 24 of 34) 

 The preparation of the 2014 Consolidated Annual Report, estimation of the basin safe 
yield, and update of the groundwater model, and associated engineering expenses - 
$80,790.  (See page 29 of 34) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 93 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 2 of 34 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District will be responsible for 20% of the costs approved by the 
Beaumont Basin Watermaster, or an amount of $23,116.  This expense is pre-planned as part of 
the District’s operating budget (Account 02-5-06-57096).   
 
For Fiscal Year 2014-15, the line item budget for the Beaumont Basin Watermaster was set at 
$60,000 with $24,005 expended to date.  The additional expenses approved by the Watermaster 
will result in a total line item expenditure of $47,121 from the $60,000 budgeted amount, or 78.5%. 
 
The District staff will present this item to the Board of Directors for ratification of the expenses 
approved by the Beaumont Basin Watermaster at the next regular board meeting. 
 
 
 
attachments 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 94 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 3 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 95 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 4 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 96 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 5 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 97 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 6 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 98 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 7 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 99 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 8 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 100 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 9 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 101 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 10 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 102 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 11 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 103 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 12 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 104 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 13 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 105 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 14 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 106 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 15 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 107 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 16 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 108 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 17 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 109 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 18 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 110 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 19 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 111 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 20 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 112 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 21 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 113 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 22 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 114 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 23 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 115 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 24 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 116 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 25 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 117 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 26 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 118 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 27 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 119 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 28 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 120 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 29 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 121 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 30 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 122 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 31 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 123 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 32 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 124 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 33 of 34 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 125 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-029  Page 34 of 34 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 126 of 145



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-030

Date: February 24, 2015 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Proposed “Ad Hoc” State of the Regional 
Water Supply Workshop Proposed by the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency 

 
On Thursday, February 12, 2015, the District received correspondence from the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency requesting our participation in a “State of the Regional Water Supply” 
workshop.  The Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency are suggesting that 
their workshop would be a non-publicized, “ad hoc” meeting where participation would be limited 
to only two Yucaipa Valley Water District board members.  These two board members would hear 
the Agency’s plans on long-term water supply strategies.  Following the meeting hosted by the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, the two Yucaipa Valley Water District board members would 
then be responsible to bring information back and present the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
plans to the full board members at a regular meeting by the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
Upon reviewing the correspondence from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, the District staff 
suggested via email (attached) that the discussion about water issues should involve the public 
and be structured to allow all five of the board members of the Yucaipa Valley Water District to 
participate.   
 
California Government Code Section 54952(b) and Joiner vs City of Sebastopol (1981) 125 Cal. 
App. 3d 799, 805 make it clear that only a temporary advisory committee composed solely of 
less than a quorum of the legislative body (and no one else) and that serves a limited purpose, 
that is not perpetual and will be dissolved once its task is completed, is not subject to the Brown 
Act.   
 
It is important to recognize that a committee made up of less than a quorum of the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency and less than a quorum of other agencies does not meet this narrow 
exception to the Brown Act.  The Joiner case points out in finding that if a legislative body 
designates less than a quorum of its members to meet with less than a quorum of another 
legislative body to perform a task even if only advisory, such a committee is subject to the open 
meeting and notice provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
In addition to eliminating an opportunity 
for public participation and violating the 
Brown Act, the proposed workshop by 
the Board of Directors of the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is very 
similar to the old telephone game in 
which one person whispers a message 
to another, which is passed through a 
line of people until the last player 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 127 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 2 of 11 

announces the message to the entire group.  Errors typically accumulate in the retellings, so the 
statement announced by the last player differs significantly, and often amusingly, from the one 
uttered by the first.  This type of communication strategy does not help the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency implement their long-term water supply plans. 
 
Therefore, the Yucaipa Valley Water District staff believes that the “ad hoc” meeting structure 
proposed by the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is a violation of the 
Brown Act and represents a poor method to disseminate important long-term water supply 
information.   
 
A simple solution is to provide public notice of the proposed workshops by the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency and to conduct the meetings at a time when the public is most available to 
participate.  This open and public format would provide an opportunity for all five elected officials 
from the Yucaipa Valley Water District to attend the meetings. 
 
The Board of Directors should consider attending the next regular meeting of the San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency to express your specific opinions regarding the proposed workshop meeting 
structure. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 128 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 3 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 129 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 4 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 130 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 5 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 131 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 6 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 132 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 7 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 133 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 8 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 134 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 9 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 135 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 10 of 11 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 136 of 145



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-030  Page 11 of 11 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 137 of 145



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 138 of 145



June 2014 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

57 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,072,750  
 Sewer Division - $11,689,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $433,500 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,195,250 
 
Number of Services: 12,206 water connections serving 16,843 units 

13,492 sewer connections serving 20,312 units 
62 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 139 of 145



June 2014 
 

 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 
One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  

This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 140 of 145



June 2014 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 141 of 145



June 2014 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 142 of 145



June 2014 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 143 of 145



June 2014 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 144 of 145



June 2014 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Meeting - February 24, 2015 - Page 145 of 145


	MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building
	12770 Second Street, Yucaipa
	MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1
	Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2
	Director Jay Bogh, Division 3
	Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4
	Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5
	Staff Report - Sac Bee - Water Conservation Not Enough for Population Growth.pdf
	State’s Population Growth Expected to Outstrip Water Conservation in Coming Years




